SHAWNEE MIDDLE SCHOOL

SHAWNEE MIDDLE SCHOOL 1675 EAST POSSUM ROAD SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 45502 (937) 717-2402 Main Office (937) 717-2412 Fax

STUDENT HANDBOOK 2023-2024

This SMS Student Handbook belongs to:

Name: ______

Brave Time_____

LOCKER NUMBER_____

http://www.clark-shawnee.k12.oh.us/

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Accidents
Administrative Office Area
Announcements
Athletic Participation
Blizzard Bags/Remote Learning
Book Bags
Brave Time
Bullying, Harassment, and/or Intimidation
Catch Up Cafe
Change of Information
Closed Campus
Deliveries
Elevators
Emergency Drills
Emergency Medical Forms
Evening Activities
Field Trips
Food and Drink
Free and Reduced Lunches
Fund Raising Projects
Good Night Rule
Guidance Office
Hallways and Restrooms
Health Records
Lockers and Locker Rooms
Media Center
Medication
Non-Discrimination Policy
Parent/Teacher Conferences
Residence Requirements for Attendance
School Closings
School Dances
Sportsmanship
Student Fees
Teacher's Desk and Property
Valuable Property
Visitors
ACADEMICS
Academic Dishonesty

Academic Eligibility for Co-Curricular Participation
Academic Eligibility for Extracurricular Participation
Class Materials

Grading System	11
Guidelines for Gifted Students	11
Honor Roll	11
Incompletes	11
Internet Access and Computer Usage	12
Interim/Progress Reports	12
Ohio State Tests	12
Post-Secondary Enrollment Options	12
Required Reimbursement Notification	12
Schedule Changes	12
Textbooks and Workbooks	12

ATTENDANCE

Attendance	12
Absence Procedures	13
Early Dismissal	13
Family Vacations	13
Leaving School Due to Illness	13
Legal Absences	13
Make Up Work	13
Requests for Homework Assignments	13
Scheduled Absences	13
Tardy to School	14
Unexcused Absence	14

DISCIPLINE

Bus Conduct	14
Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Activities	14
Definitions	14
Dress and Grooming	15
Due Process for Students	16
Electronic Devices	16
Falsified Notes and Phone Calls	17
Merit System	17
Reward Activities	17
Student Conduct Code of Behavior	17
Chemical Use and Dependency Policy	18-19
Technology Acceptable Use	20
Weapons	21
Zero Tolerance Policy	21
Directory Information	21

SHAWNEE MIDDLE SCHOOL

Dear Students of Shawnee Middle School:

Welcome to the 2023-2024 school year! We are excited to welcome our next group of 7th graders to the building and see our 8th graders transition to their second year. We look forward to an exciting Shawnee Middle School experience.

This handbook was created to serve as a guide for you in knowing the policies and procedures that will be followed during the school year. It serves as a framework about which you should plan your activities. It does not cover every situation in great detail but serves as a framework to give you the essentials you need to begin. In the absence of specific instructions, you should comply with the spirit of good citizenship and when in doubt talk with your teachers, counselor and principal.

As the students of Shawnee Middle School, you are the center. There will be great challenges, as there are with anything new. We ask that you work hard, be fair and honest, and apply yourself to the best of your ability in all that you do. It will serve you well as you create habits that you will carry with you to high school and beyond. We hope that your time at Shawnee Middle School will be valuable and prepare you for your future.

Yours in education,

The Faculty, Staff and Administrative Team of Shawnee Middle School

We believe:

BELIEF STATEMENTS

- 1. All students have a right and can learn when provided with a safe and appropriate learning environment.
- 2. All individuals should be treated with respect and fairness.
- 3. Respectful relationships between students and staff facilitate student learning.
- 4. A partnership between home, school, and the community should exist to successfully educate the learner.
- 5. Students need to be able to examine and use information constructively, in order to make wise life choices.
- 6. The school needs to provide essential skills for everyone to become lifelong learners and productive citizens.

VISION STATEMENT

A student-centered community where high expectations and a safe learning environment inspire all to grow.

MISSION STATEMENT

Be BRAVE together: Bold, Respectful, Accepting, Visionary, Engaged

SHAWNEE PRIDE

As a SHAWNEE BRAVE you are an important part of our student body. YOU contribute vitality and life to your school by involving your attitudes, your interest, your emotions and your efforts in its programs. In return, your school provides education, recognition and opportunities to stretch your mind and to cultivate your talents and creativity. It also offers you a setting in which to test your ideas, values, and judgments in preparation for your career beyond middle school and high school.

Your parents and teachers hope that you will take advantage of the opportunities for you here at SMS.

We invite you to accept the following standards as guidelines for your successful career at SHAWNEE MIDDLE SCHOOL.

AS A SHAWNEE BRAVE I WILL:

- 1. HAVE A HIGH REGARD FOR MYSELF AS A UNIQUE AND VALUABLE PERSON.
- 2. EXHIBIT PRIDE IN MYSELF THROUGH MY BEHAVIOR AND SPEECH AND BE WILLING TO TREAT EVERY PERSON AND THE PROPERTY OF OTHERS WITH RESPECT.
- 3. MAKE AN HONEST EFFORT TO DO MY BEST IN MY SCHOOL WORK AND ACTIVITIES IN ORDER TO KNOW THE SATISFACTION OF ACHIEVEMENT AND SUCCESS.
- 4. BELIEVE THAT A SIGNIFICANT PART OF MY SCHOOL EXPERIENCE INCLUDES SERVICE TO OTHERS, AND IS MADE POSSIBLE THROUGH MY OWN RESPONSIBLE BEHAVIOR.
- 5. ACCEPT THE BENEFITS AND RESPONSIBILITIES THAT ARE MINE AS A CITIZEN OF MY SCHOOL, MY COMMUNITY AND MY COUNTRY.

SHAWNEE MIDDLE SCHOOL PHILOSOPHY

Fully aware that the student is the focal point of the educational program, Shawnee Middle School accepts the responsibility for his/her development with the following understandings:

- 1. The educational opportunities offered to the students, with concern for individual, emotional, physical, and intellectual differences, must be equal without regard to race, creed, color, gender, or national origin.
- 2. The student's education should assist in the development of habits, attitudes, understandings, and skills necessary for a productive, satisfying life in society.
- 3. The educational process should develop a feeling of self-worth and accomplishment through effective and appropriate challenges.
- 4. In order to make their education meaningful, students should be encouraged to participate in a variety of activities and be given the opportunity to review the results whenever applicable.
- 5. The need of students to adjust to a changing world in the areas of economics, technology, governments, and limited resources should be met by an educational plan that is flexible and innovative.
- 6. The total educational atmosphere should be characterized by effective communication and cooperation among parents, students, citizens, and professional staff.

SHAWNEE HIGH SCHOOL ALMA MATER

HAIL TO OUR ALMA MATER WITH COLORS RAISED ON HIGH THE PRECEPTS THAT SHE STANDS FOR WILL GROW AS YEARS GO BY HER MEN ARE THE FIGHTING "BRAVE MEN" HER DAUGHTERS ALWAYS TRUE O STAND AND SING! LET VOICES RING, SHAWNEE OUR PRAISE TO YOU!

SHAWNEE HIGH SCHOOL "BATTLE CRY"

FIGHT ON YOU SHAWNEE BRAVES, MEN OF THE BLACK AND THE GOLD. MOVE QUICKLY DOWN THE FIELD (FOOTBALL), FLOOR (BASKETBALL) AND WIN AS IN THE DAYS OF OLD -RAH! RAH! RAH! BRING ON YOUR STOUTEST MEN, AND WE WILL VANQUISH THEM TONITE, VICTORY'S OURS TO DEFEND, WE WILL FIGHT TO THE END FOR SHAWNEE (YELL) B-R-A-V-E-S! (REPEAT AND HIGH INSTEAD OF BRAVE YELL ON END)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Accidents

All accidents to either persons or property in the school building, on the school grounds, at practice sessions, or at any school-sponsored event must be reported to the middle school office.

Administrative Office Areas

Students sent or called to the Administrative Offices are expected to proceed directly there. If it is necessary that students wait, they are expected to be courteous and quiet. Students are not to leave until dismissed.

Announcements

Announcements important to staff and students will be made daily. Additional announcements may be made at the close of the day. Students have a responsibility to remain quiet during these announcements.

Athletic Participation

Before an athlete may participate in any athletic program, he/she must have a current physical signed by a licensed physician, a parent-signed liability release, an insurance coverage form, and an emergency medical form. Students must meet academic eligibility standards established by the O.H.S.A.A. and Clark-Shawnee Local Board of Education. All athletes will be held accountable to the Shawnee Middle School Athletic Code of Conduct. Athletes and parents should be aware of the policies regarding violations that may remove a student-athlete from participation in athletics and/or extracurricular activities.

Remote Learning

In the event that our district reaches a total of 5 calamity days for the school year, additional calamity days will require that students complete remote learning for each of their assigned classes. Any student that does not complete remote learning assignments by the given due date will receive an unexcused absence for that day.

Book Bags

Book bags are not permitted to be carried to class during the school day. They may be carried to and from school but must remain in lockers throughout the school day. This includes string bags and oversized purses.

Brave Time

Brave Time is a structured, active community learning time. Students will be assigned to a classroom and teacher. Students may request help from other teachers during this time. Activities may include but are not limited to the following: peer tutoring, receiving teacher support, silent reading, small group counseling, study groups, re-teaching sessions, make-up assignments, and challenge opportunities.

Bullying, Harassment, and/or Intimidation Notification

The Clark-Shawnee Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, positive, productive, and nurturing educational environment for all of its students. The Board encourages the promotion of positive interpersonal relations between members of the school community. Below is a summary of Board Policy 5517.01 which can be found on the Clark-Shawnee website.

Harassment, intimidation, or bullying means:

- A. Any intentional written, verbal, electronic, or physical act that a student or group of students exhibits toward another particular student(s) more than once and the behavior both causes mental or physical harm to the other student(s) and is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that it creates an intimidating, threatening, or abusive educational environment for the other student(s); or
- B. Violence with a dating relationship.

If the investigation finds an instance of harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying/cyberbullying by an electronic act or otherwise, has occurred, it will result in prompt and appropriate remedial and/or disciplinary action. This may include suspension or up to expulsion for students, up to discharge for employees, exclusion for parents, guests, volunteers, and contractors, and removal from any official position and/or a request to resign for Board members. Individuals may also be referred to law enforcement officials. For additional information, please read Board Policy 5517.01, and Administrative Guideline 5517.01 (both available at <u>http://www.neola.com/clarkshawnee-oh/</u>), which each contain information regarding:

- Definitions
- Complaint Process
- Privacy/Confidentiality
- Notification

Catch Up Café

Catch Up Café will be available whenever a student has a late, incomplete or missing assignment during lunch period. Students are to report to the designated Catch Up Café room at the beginning of the lunch period. Students are expected to bring the late, missing or incomplete assignments with them. If a student fails to serve CUC, he/she may be subject to disciplinary action. A student may attend CUC, even if not assigned, for quiet study time, room permitting. After every 10 assigned CUCs, a student will receive a one-hour, after-school academic study session.

Change of Information

Any changes or corrections of address, telephone number, or guardianship should be changed on Final Forms. Due to unforeseen circumstances or emergencies which may arise during a school day, accurate records are a top priority.

Closed Campus

Shawnee Middle School is a closed campus. Students at no time will leave school without signing out in the proper manner. Any student who leaves the school campus without permission will be considered truant and the appropriate consequences will be given.

Deliveries

Deliveries of flowers, balloons, and gifts will be accepted and distributed by the office at the end of the school day ONLY. No deliveries of food orders made by students will be accepted or allowed except through the PBIS store. Balloons and glass vases are not permitted to be transported on school buses.

Elevators

Students are not permitted to use the elevator without written permission from the Office. Only temporarily or permanently handicapped students will be granted permission to ride the elevator.

Emergency Drills

Regularly scheduled emergency drills (fire, tornado, and school safety drills) are required by law. Teachers will give specific instructions to each class. Emergency drills are to be carried out as if they were real emergencies. Students and staff are to move quickly and quietly to the point of safety. For any other emergency situations, instructions will be given over the public-address system. Cooperation is expected at all times.

Emergency Medical and Registration Forms

At the start of each school year, parents must fill out all required fields through Final Forms. A link to the FinalForms website can be found on the Clark-Shawnee District Website (<u>https://www.clark-shawnee.k12.oh.us/</u>). It is essential that these forms be completed accurately so that files relating to students can be completed. Emergency situations sometimes arise requiring the staff to contact parents/guardians; without accurate information, this may not be possible.

Evening Activities

A student who is absent from school **MAY NOT** attend or participate in school-sponsored activities that evening. Under unusual or extreme circumstances, permission may be granted by the principal, assistant principal, or in the case of athletics, the athletic director. This permission must be granted prior to the participation; and in the case of weekend activity, when school is missed on Friday, permission must also be granted. The responsibility for requesting permission rests with the student/student's family.

Field Trips

Field trips scheduled during school hours will require permission slips signed by the parent/guardian to be turned in prior to departure. A telephone call is not sufficient. The absence will be considered an excused absence with the student being responsible for informing his/her teachers of the absence prior to the field trip and for making up any class material missed during the day and time of the field trip. Final Forms must be completed in order for a student to attend a field trip.

Food and Drink

A working breakfast will be held each morning in the classroom until 7:33. Students may get the school breakfast or bring their own food from home. No other food is permitted in class, unless approved by the teacher. Students are permitted to have water in clear (see-through) containers. No other beverages are permitted.

Free and Reduced Breakfast and Lunch Program

The Clark-Shawnee Local School District offers a free and reduced breakfast and lunch program. Forms and explanations of the program may be obtained in the middle school office. Students will not be permitted to charge more than \$12.00 to their student account.

Fund Raising Projects

All matters of fund raising or collection of money for any reason, whether for a class activity, club activity, for charity or other causes that may arise, must be cleared through the principal's office before any contractual agreement of solicitation may occur. No outside organizations will be allowed to solicit within the school building during school hours.

Good Night Rule

Once students enter a school-sponsored activity such as a dance, athletic event, or other social function, they are not permitted to leave and return. Only in emergency situations will students be readmitted and only with administrative approval.

Guidance Office

A guidance counselor is available for all students to receive information, counsel, and help. Students and parents are requested to call or sign up for appointments with a guidance counselor.

Hallways and Restrooms

No student is to be in the hallway without an appropriate pass during class periods. Students are to travel quietly and directly to and from assigned destinations. Students are not permitted to congregate in the hallways or restrooms. Students are to use the restroom closest to the classroom from which they are excused. No student is to be in a restroom during class periods without the appropriate pass. Students are not permitted to use cell phones in the hallways or restrooms. Administration reserves the right to limit student passes to a reasonable amount per day. Students feeling ill are to report directly to the office or clinic, not to the restroom. Students will use the restrooms in the athletic hallway during their lunch periods and are not to be in the academic wing restrooms.

Health Records

Ohio law has mandated that schools be provided up-to-date health records on all students by specific dates (two weeks after entry to school). If records are not in the school office by the specified date or written proof stating that the records are in process of being completed, the student will be excluded from school. All students must have an emergency authorization form on file in the school office.

Lockers and Locker Rooms

Each student is assigned a hall locker. Each locker has a combination, and it should be kept locked at all times. This is for your protection. **Do not block your lock** open to avoid using the combination. **No stickers** are to be placed on or inside the locker. Approval of locker decorations is at the discretion of building administration. For your protection, ALL LOCKERS ARE SUBJECT TO PERIODIC INSPECTION. Any non-permissible or illegal item found in the locker will be assumed as being your property and responsibility. NOTE: Lockers remain property of the school and by order of the administration may be opened and searched at any time. This also applies to lockers in the locker rooms as well.

Media Center Rules Guidelines for Use

1. Students may sign out two books at any one time for two weeks with renewal privileges of ONE time. Overdue notices are issued weekly. Any overdue books not returned before grade cards are distributed will result in a student's grade card being held until materials are returned. Audio-visual equipment and/or materials may be used in the media center with a pass from the teacher assigning the materials and a prearranged time to accommodate availability of equipment.

2. Students are not to have GUM, CANDY, or BEVERAGES in the media center during the school day.

3. Since the media center is part of the educational process, students are expected to be working/reading quietly while in the media center. Students not complying with this expectation can lose their privilege to be in the media center unless under the direct supervision of a teacher.

Medication

No medication or drug shall be administered unless the following criteria are met:

1. A written request signed by the parent or guardian that the drug be administered to a student.

2. A written statement signed by the prescribing physician that details the name of the drug, the dosage and times, and the reasons for its use. The name and address of the student, school and class of the student shall be on the written statement. If there could be a reaction to the medication, the physician's telephone number shall be listed on the statement.

3. The parent or guardian must submit a revised statement signed by the physician if any of the information originally provided by the physician changes.

Medication will be administered in the clinic or office under the control of the school nurse, but in the absence of the nurse, the principal, teacher, secretary, or aide may administer the medication. All medications will be dropped off by a parent/guardian and kept in the security of school personnel rather than in the possession of the pupil. The only exceptions would be with the permission of school administration, parents, and physicians.

4. Final Forms must be up-to-date with all medication needs.

Non-Discrimination Policy

It is the policy of the Clark-Shawnee Local Board of Education to be in compliance with Public Law 94-142, Section 504 (Handicap), Title VI (race, color, national origin) and Title IX (sex): no student or employee shall on the basis of handicap, race, color, national origin or gender, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity.

Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the School District community or a visitor to the District or receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the harassment or the nature of the alleged harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to conduct such a process. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the incident.

The following persons shall coordinate compliance and investigate complaints of harassment and discrimination:

Shawnee Middle School Assistant Superintendent, Mr. Brian Masser 3680 Selma Road, Springfield, OH 45502 PreK-2 Principal, Mrs. Amanda Shaffer 1841 East Possum Road, Springfield, OH 45502

Parent/Teacher Conferences

Parent/Teacher conferences will be announced early in the school year in school publications. An appointment with a teacher, counselor, or administrator is encouraged at all times and may be arranged by contacting the middle school office.

Residence Requirements for Attendance

To attend and graduate from Shawnee Middle School, a student must reside full time with the parents or legal guardian at a residence located within the Clark-Shawnee Local School District, must be totally emancipated from the family or legal guardian and residing in the Clark-Shawnee District, be accepted on a tuition basis according to school board policy or as an approved open enrollment student.

School Closings/Delays

School may be closed or delayed some mornings due to weather. This will usually be announced through district notification systems (phone, email, text) and local news outlets.

School Dances

The following rules are in effect at Shawnee Middle School dances:

- 1. Once a student has entered a dance, he or she must remain. Once a student leaves, he or she will not be allowed to return.
- 2. Special dress codes may be adopted by the school for certain dances.
- 3. Only Shawnee Middle School's seventh and eighth graders may attend middle school dances.
- 4. Final Forms must be up-to-date.

Sportsmanship

Sportsmanship is of paramount importance in all competitive activities at SMS. The students, parents, and fans are expected to always demonstrate respect for those

involved and to be responsible for establishing and maintaining good sportsmanship policies and traditions at all athletic contests.

Student Fees

Certain student fees are assessed each year to students to offset costs and maintain certain programs or materials, dependent on grade and classes enrolled. It is recommended that these fees be paid at the beginning of each school year. Grade cards, certain student records and progress reports may be held for failure to pay fees.

Teacher's Desk and Property

The teacher's desk and property are off limits to students. No item is to be taken from a teacher's desk without permission. Attendance sheets and grade books are confidential and off limits to students.

Valuable Property

Students are encouraged NOT to bring expensive items to school. The school will not accept responsibility for the loss of personal property. This includes electronic items, cell phones, media players, etc.

Visitors

Parents and visitors must register at the main office and receive a pass before visiting a student or a teacher. Those who do not register will be asked to leave. Those who refuse to leave will be charged with trespassing.

ACADEMICS

Academic Dishonesty

Academic dishonesty includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- Obtaining and/or accepting a copy of tests or scoring devices.
- Copying another student's answers during an exam.
- Providing another student answers or copies of exam questions.
- Representing as one's own work the product of someone else's creativity.
- Using notes or other material not permitted during testing.
- Duplicating another student's project for submission as one's own work.
- Having someone other than that student prepare the student's homework, project, laboratory report, take-home exam, or computer-generated work.
- Permitting another student to copy the student's homework, project, laboratory report, take-home exam, or computer-generated work, other than for a teacher-approved, collaborative effort.

No form of academic dishonesty will be tolerated. Any assignment for which dishonesty is evident will receive no credit. Furthermore, if the situation warrants, the student allowing his/her work to be copied will also be punished. A violation may result in discipline and/or loss of credit.

Academic Eligibility for Co-Curricular Participation

The Clark-Shawnee Local School District offers school related activities above and beyond the regular academic class periods. Co-curricular activities applicable to this policy include organizations and activities, sponsored and/or associated with the Clark-Shawnee Local School District in which a student receives credit or where participation is directly connected to credit. Examples of co-curricular activities include but are not limited to: band and choir concerts, and marching band competitions.

Each co-curricular activity has its own requirements and rules set forth by the appointed Clark-Shawnee Local School District staff supervisor/sponsor. Each co-curricular activity shall adhere to the rules and regulations pertaining to the district chemical use and dependency as well as to due process in any disciplinary

action.

Academic Eligibility for Extra-Curricular Participation

Extra-curricular activities are an important and integral part of a student's total educational experiences. We encourage all students to participate in the extra-curricular activities of their choice. Extra-curricular activities are defined as non-academic/non-curricular activities where a student does not earn and receive credit through their participation in the activity. Examples of extra-curricular activities include but are not limited to: Athletics, Cheerleading, Student Council, and Drama and Dramatic productions etc.

Students who choose to participate in non-credit extra-curricular activities (as defined above) shall be governed by the following student eligibility policy:

1. Scholarship (Grades)

In order to be eligible to participate in any extracurricular activities (as previously defined) in grades 7-8, a student must be currently enrolled and must have enrolled in school the immediately preceding grading period. During the preceding grading period, the student must have received passing grades in a minimum of five (5) one-credit courses or the equivalent which count toward graduation. To participate in athletics a student must have a GPA of 1.50 for the preceding grading period as prescribed in accordance with the Ohio High School Athletic Association. Higher standards than previously described may be required for specific clubs or activities.

2. Attendance

Students are expected to be in school each day that the schools are open for instruction. Students absent from school will NOT be permitted to participate in non-credit extra-curricular activities on the day of their absence. Emergency situations will be evaluated on an individual basis by the Principal, Assistant Principal, and Athletic Director. Students must be in school before 11.00 am in order to participate in any extra-curricular activity on that day (i.e., practices, events, games, rehearsals, meetings, etc.)

3. Conduct

Students participating in extra-curricular activities will be held to the rules of conduct described in the Shawnee Middle School Conduct Code for Extra-Curricular Activities. This includes rules of behavior and conduct as well as due process and intervention procedures for alcohol and substance abuse violations.

Class Materials

Students are required to report to classes daily with the necessary materials: pencils, pens, paper, books, homework assignments, etc. Disciplinary action may be taken for failure to be prepared.

Grading System

Shawnee Middle School utilizes a nine (9) weeks grading system, with four reporting periods throughout the school year. Grade cards will be given out to the student usually one week after grades are due in the office. The following grading scale is adopted by the Clark-Shawnee Local Board of Education and will be used in calculating student grades:

А	4.0	100-90
В	3.0	89-80
С	2.0	79-70
D	1.0	69-60
F	0	Below 60

Guidelines for the Identification of Gifted Students

1. Gifted Areas (as established by the state of Ohio)

-Superior Cognitive Ability

-Specific Academic - Reading, Math, Science, Social studies

-Creativity

-Visual Arts

-Performing Arts

2. Standardized Assessments Used

-IOWA and COGAT testing in grades 2, 5, 7

-COGAT score of 127 or higher qualifies student in superior cognitive ability

-Percentiles of 90-94 or scores of 124-126 qualify students for retesting using the Woodcock-Johnson of WISC III tests

3. Visual and Performing Arts

-Two-part identification process:

-Renzulli Scales for rating musical or artistic characteristics of superior students (completed by teacher)

-Portfolio (art) or Performance (music) to be assessed by professionals in the field

4. Referrals

-Students can be referred for testing in ANY of the gifted areas at any time

during their education

-Students can be referred by teachers, parents, or peers

-Official referral forms can be found in the school office

-Any written or spoken request by parents to school officials shall be accepted as a referral and action taken accordingly

5. Testing and Assessments

-NO testing shall be conducted without written parent permission

-Testing shall be completed in a timely manner upon receipt of parent permission

-Testing shall be completed by the district gifted teachers, coordinators, or other qualified personnel

-Parents shall be notified of testing results

-Teachers shall be notified of assessment results in order to provide appropriate instruction

-If there is disagreement concerning the results, parents may appeal the decision by contacting the Assistant Superintendent

<u>Honor Roll</u>

Grade period academic recognition is determined after each nine week grading period. The following categories are established based on the grade point averages as indicated:

 Principal's List 	4.0
•Honor Roll	3.0-3.9

Incompletes

The "I" (incomplete) may be used on the report card in lieu of a grade for any grading period. The "I" indicates that the work can be made up. It is the responsibility of the students to check with the teacher of the missed work and complete the necessary assignments based on the number of days of student absence.

Internet Access and Computer Usage

Shawnee Middle School offers students access to the school district's computer networks including access to the Internet. The computer and the networks are provided for students to conduct research. In using them, students are expected to behave responsibly and maturely just as they would in any other school activity. Network administrators and other school staff may review files and communications to maintain system integrity, to review student progress, and to ensure that the system is being used responsibly. Every student and parent/guardian is required to complete an "Acceptable Use Policy/Permission" on Final Forms. This will allow the student to use these computer resources. Violation may result in disciplinary action and/or loss of access.

Interim/Progress Reports

At the midpoint of each grading period, all students will be issued an interim report. For additional updated information of grades, students and parents are encouraged to use their Progress Book access code, which allows them access to current grades on the internet. The parent access code allows parents to group all of their students enrolled in Clark-Shawnee schools. The access codes are sent only once to each student's parent/guardian. If an access code is lost, parents/guardians are to contact the middle school office.

Ohio State Tests

The Ohio Department of Education currently requires that all students in grade 7 and 8 take state tests in ELA (English language arts) and math. Eighth graders also take a state test in science.

Post-Secondary Enrollment Options

Students choosing to take courses for college credit must complete an application process through the high school guidance office. The general criterion for selection of students into the Post-Secondary Options program is a 3.5 cumulative grade point average. Applications for the Post-Secondary Options program are due by March 31st.

Required Reimbursement Notification for College Credit Plus

Shawnee Middle School students taking College Credit Plus courses need to be aware of certain provisions of College Credit Plus courses. The following statement constitutes official notification of these provisions: Under Ohio Revised Code 3365.09 (A) a district may seek reimbursement from a student or parent if the student fails to attain a passing final grade. School districts may seek reimbursement under the following two circumstances: 1) If the student receives a failing grade at the end of the college course; or 2) If the student withdraws from or drops the college course subsequent to the 14th calendar day after the particular course began.

Schedule Changes

All middle school student schedules are considered to be final. For middle school students taking high school classes, there will be pre-announced dates and times preceding the start of the school year when students may request high school schedule changes. Any high school schedule changes must have the approval of the teachers, principal, guidance counselor, and the parent/guardian. Any high school course dropped after the second week of school may be dropped with an F.

Textbooks and Workbooks

Textbooks loaned to you by the board of education are expensive! Please handle them with care. You will be responsible for each book issued to you. If any book is lost or damaged, you will be expected to pay for the book. No book shall be credited to a student turning one in where the school number of the book has been altered. No report card, records, transcripts, or diplomas will be issued until all books are returned and/or fees are paid. A replacement book will not be issued until a lost book has been reconciled. Students shall be required to pay for all workbooks and supplementary materials necessary for the course in which they are enrolled.

ATTENDANCE

Ohio Revised Code, Section 3321.01:All children between ages six (6) and eighteen (18) are of compulsory school age and must attend school.Ohio Revised Code, Section 3321.03:It is the parent's responsibility to cause the child to attend school.

Regular, punctual attendance is essential if students are to receive maximum benefit from their educational experiences. Certain rules and regulations regarding attendance are necessary and mandated by the Ohio Revised Code. All students are expected to be in attendance every day that school is open for instruction. A series of written notifications, mediations and/or telephone contacts will be made with parents to try to circumvent potential attendance problems. Discipline consequences for habitual tardiness and unexcused absences may include loss of driving privileges, detention, In-School Learning Placement, court referral, loss of credit, and up to and including suspension and expulsion.

Reporting Student Absences

Parent/Guardian confirmation by telephone the morning of an absence is required. The parent/guardian is requested to contact the Office at (937) 717-2402 between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. the day of the absence. Please state the student's name, grade, reason for the absence, and identity of the caller. Upon the student's return to school, a written note is also required providing: student's name and grade; date(s) of the absence; reason for the absence; and signature of the parent/guardian. This note is to be turned in at the main office on the day of the student's return. Without a note a student's absence is considered unexcused.

Early Dismissal

Students wishing to leave school before the end of the school day are to bring a note signed by the parent/guardian to the Office before school begins. The note is to include: student's name, grade, time of dismissal, reason for the early dismissal, and the parent's/guardian's signature. When dismissed, the student must sign out in the Office and then upon returning to school must provide a note of verification to the Office. In the event of a medical appointment, the student is to return with a medical note that will excuse him/her from the absence. The medical statement must be a note, card, or letter from a competent medical authority listing the day(s) that the student was deemed unable to attend school and be signed by the medical authority or his/her designate. Dismissal with more than fifteen (15) minutes remaining in the class will count as an absence in the class.

Leaving School Due to Illness

Any call made to the parent/guardian requesting student release due to illness must be made in the office. A standard practice shall be that the student should see the nurse before going home sick. School policy requires students to be signed out by the parent/guardian/parental designee. Students are not to call or text parents

from their cell phones without permission from a school authority.

Excused Absences

Parent/guardian call-ins will be considered excused for up to 10 days per year. After the 10 days have been met each year, any further absence will be considered unexcused unless accompanied by a medical/professional note or court note. Family Vacations will be limited to ONE per school year, not exceeding 5 school days. These vacation days are considered part of the 10 excused parent/guardian allowed absences for the school year. Student illness, critical illness in the family, death in the family, and other absences outlined in <u>Clark-Shawnee Local Board of Education Policy 5200</u> are considered excused/ legal absences.

Make Up Work

Any student with an in legal (excused) absence from school will be granted the opportunity to make up work missed and receive credit. It is the responsibility of the student to obtain the make-up assignments and, in the case of illness, to hand them in within a period of time upon return to school which equals the number of days absent. Students absent for reasons other than illness must be prepared to make up work prior to absence or first day upon return. In the event that a student is absent, the student and/or guardian should contact individual teachers to request work and/or assignments. Any student determined "unexcused" or "truant" may receive zeros on missed assignments, tests, and quizzes.

Tardy to School

A student must get to school/class on time in order for the teacher to instruct and the student to learn effectively. If the student fails to get to school/class on time disciplinary action will result. There is no such thing as an excused or unexcused tardy (LATE ENTRY TO SCHOOL) except as it relates to make-up work. All students will be afforded 3 "CONSEQUENCE FREE" late entries <u>per semester</u>. The administration will utilize a progressive discipline plan for total tardies.

The tardy discipline plan is a set of guidelines, and as such is subject to change according to administration discretion. The administration reserves the right to implement a step of the tardy discipline plan without implementing the prior step in cases of habitual tardiness.

Any late entry to school, defined as 35 minutes beyond the start of the school day, must be accompanied by a note or a call from a parent or guardian. Any entry after that time not accompanied by a parental note or phone call will be treated as truancy. Tardy to class will be dealt with in a manner consistent with the individual classroom teacher's discipline plan.

Unexcused Absence

Students not attending school for reasons other than those accepted as excusable by the State of Ohio will be recorded as either Truancy or Unexcused. Students may receive no credit for work missed on the day of the unexcused absence. Any student who accumulates thirty (30) consecutive unexcused hours, forty-two (42) unexcused hours in a month or seventy-two (72) hours in a year will be considered habitually truant and an absence intervention plan will be implemented. Violation of the habitually truant intervention plan will result in a referral to Child Protective Services and to Juvenile Court where charges will be filed against the student and/or guardian.

A progressive intervention and discipline plan for habitual unexcused absences will be implemented which may use interventions and disciplinary action including conferences with students, phone calls to parents, letters to parents, mediations with the juvenile court, detentions, In-school Learning Placement, and loss of credit.

DISCIPLINE

Bus Conduct

Riding to and from school on a bus provided by the Board of Education is both a convenience and a privilege. The bus driver is responsible for the safety of his/her passengers; therefore, his/her instructions must be followed explicitly. All school disciplinary rules apply. Misconduct will result in a referral to the middle school office. Consequences for bus misconduct may include suspension or denial of bus privileges, detention, suspension, or expulsion. Students are to ride the bus assigned. Permission to ride another bus may be obtained from the principal only in emergency situations.

Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Activities

Each co-curricular activity has its own requirements and rules set forth by the appointed Clark-Shawnee Local School District staff supervisor/sponsor. Each co-curricular activity shall adhere to the rules and regulations pertaining to the district chemical use and dependency policy as well as to due process in any

Students participating in extra-curricular activities will be held to the rules of conduct described in the Shawnee Middle School Conduct Code for Extra-Curricular Activities. This includes rules of behavior and conduct as well as due process and intervention procedures for alcohol and substance abuse violations.

Definitions

A. Types of Disciplinary Actions -

Listed below are the basic types of disciplinary action which may be used in conjunction with violations of the school conduct code. When appropriate, a plan of progressive discipline will be employed. Please be advised that these disciplinary measures may be used in combination without constituting double jeopardy.

- 1. Issue verbal reprimand.
- 2. Restrict or remove privileges.
- 3. Assign detentions (before school or after school).
- 4. Advise parents by telephone.
- 5. Advise parents by letter/email.
- 6. Hold conference with parents and student.
- 7. Refer student to counselor.
- 8. Refer student to psychologist, request psychological evaluation or participate in intervention program.
- 9. Remove student from class.
- 10. Withhold grades and/or transcripts (used only when a student owes the school money).
- 11. Assign Administrative Detention.
- 12. Isolated Learning Placement (1 to 10 days).
- 13. Suspend out-of-school (1 to 10 days).
- 14. Recommend expulsion to the superintendent.
- 15. Remove student from an activity or school organization.
- 16. Require restitution (in cases of stealing or property damage).
- 17. Notify police authorities.
- 18. Move to cite student to court.

B. Definition of Terms-

Detention: The holding of a student in a specified limited area before or after school.

<u>Hearing</u>: The opportunity for a student to give his/her side of the story. The hearing process and the forms you are requested to complete are designed to assure you of the due process to which you are entitled by law. If prior to or during the hearing, the hearing officer decides that you may be subject to suspension or expulsion because of the nature of the infraction, he will advise you in writing at that time.

Emergency Removal: Removal of a student from class whose presence poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an on-going threat of disruption to the academic process. This cannot exceed a 72-hour period.

Administrative Detention: The holding of a student for a minimum of two (2) hours per session on specified afternoons or Saturdays. Abuse of Administrative Detention rules or failure to attend an assigned session may result in additional Administrative Detention assignment, Isolated Learning Placement or suspension. School work will be required during Administrative Detention.

In-School Learning Placement (ILP): The holding of a student in a specified limited area for the entire school day with the exception of necessary restroom privileges. An isolated learning placement may be from one to ten days in length. Normally, school work can be made up for full credit during the time a student is in isolated learning placement. Students may not participate in any extra-curricular activities for the period of time they are placed in ILP.

<u>Out of School Suspension</u>: The removal of school attendance privileges and all school activity privileges for a period from one to ten days. School work may be made up for credit during the time a student is suspended out of school. A student suspended from school may not participate in any school event for the duration of that suspension.

Expulsion: The removal of school attendance privileges and all school activity privileges for more than 10 days. School work may be made up for credit during the time a student is expelled from school. A student expelled from school may not participate in any school activity for the duration of the expulsion.

Privileges: Activities such as extra-curricular events, assemblies, awards, incentives, dances, graduation ceremonies, etc.

Dress and Grooming Guidelines

Education implies a process of growth involving the whole student. While the most important emphasis is given to intellectual growth, opportunities are available for social, cultural and recreational activities. Such growth can best occur only in a healthy and safe environment free of disruption or distraction. We believe it's important for students to develop dress and grooming habits that will be of value to them after graduation. Therefore, dress and grooming guidelines must be maintained which allow for the proper educational environment.

It is the intent that all dress and grooming guidelines be equitably applied to all students district wide. The administrative team will provide guideline interpretations for students and parents as circumstances warrant due to changes in fashion trends, differing grade levels of students, etc. Student dress and appearance must meet conventional standards of dress and modesty during all school functions. Any student dress or grooming which is disruptive or distracting to the education process will not be permitted regardless of whether a specific guideline has previously been issued.

1) Hair styling which is disruptive or distracting is not permissible.

- 2) Piercings, Make-up, and Accessories
 - i) Students may not have a facial or body piercing that may inhibit student performance or speech, that may cause a disruption of the educational environment, or that poses a risk of health and/or safety concern. Piercings of the tongue, lip, eyebrow, cheek, etc. are not permitted. No gauges are permitted. Piercings must be safely and properly maintained during any form of physical activity, whether curricular, co-curricular, or extra-curricular. This includes during any curricular courses in which lab activities are involved.
 - ii) Wallet chains and spiked or studded accessories are not permitted.
 - iii) Make-up when worn must not create a distraction to the educational environment.

3) Clothing or tattoos with symbols, pictures, or inscriptions which could be reasonably interpreted to have an obscene, suggestive, sexual nature, racial, or otherwise inappropriate meaning including the advertising of alcohol, drugs, or tobacco are not permitted. Students shall not wear clothing which encourages or trivializes violence or the effects of violence. Clothing must be properly maintained with student health and safety being a priority.

- 4) Clothing is to be worn as designed, of appropriate fit, and must not be disruptive or distracting in nature, therefore,
 - i) Halter tops and tube tops are unacceptable school apparel, and see through clothing is not permitted.
 - ii) Open weave shirts or blouses, tank tops, half shirts (must cover the stomach area), or muscle shirts also are not permitted. Straps on shirts, tops, and dresses must be a minimum of two inches.
 - iii) Dresses, skirts or shorts must be at least the length of the person's fingertips extended down the side while in a standing position.
 - iv) Undergarments are not to be showing at any time.
 - v) Holes in clothing may not expose skin or undergarments above the person's fingertips extended down the side while in a standing position.
 - vi) Tight fitting clothing such as yoga pants, leggings, jeggings, and tights must be covered with other clothing.
- 5) Footwear shall be appropriate.
- 6) Hats and hoods are not to be worn inside the building without specific prior approval of school administration.
- 7) Sunglasses are not to be worn within the school except upon a doctor's prescription or specific approval of school administration.
- 8) Additional dress and grooming regulations may be required in certain classes and activities where personal safety is a factor.

STUDENTS WITH INAPPROPRIATE DRESS AND/OR GROOMING MAY BE SENT HOME UNTIL THE INFRACTION IS CORRECTED, AND/OR

DISCIPLINARY ACTION MAY BE NECESSARY BASED UPON THE STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT.

Note: Repeat offenders may have additional disciplinary action imposed.

Due Process for Students

In all cases where disciplinary action is anticipated concerning a student, the student will be given an opportunity to tell his side of the story. The student will have the opportunity at an informal hearing to state his case.

In case of an emergency removal from a class or from school for more than twenty-four hours, a hearing will be scheduled within seventy-two hours, and the student will be given the opportunity to challenge the reasons for removal and any further action that may be taken.

Ohio Revised Code 3313.66 requires that students are provided with a written notice of intent to suspend prior to being suspended. The statute also requires that students and parents are provided with a written notice of intent to expel. The notices shall include: (1) a statement of intent to discipline; (2) a description of the acts which were in violation of the Student Code of Conduct; (3) specific rules of the Student Code of Conduct which were violated; (4) and the dates of the suspension or

expulsion.

The written notice of intent to suspend shall be given to the student at an informal hearing. The notice of intent to expel shall be sent to the student and parents, and the students and parents will be provided an opportunity for an informal hearing prior to a decision to expel. Students will receive an excused absence for each school day missed as a result of a first suspension in a semester. Subsequent suspensions and/or expulsion will be considered unexcused.

A student or his parents may appeal any decision of the Shawnee Middle School administration to suspend a student from school to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee. A student or his parents may appeal an expulsion from school to the Board of Education or its designee. A student or parent must request an appeal in writing within 10 days after the discipline measure takes effect. The student and his parent may be represented in all appeal hearings. Pursuant to Ohio law, a student or parent may further appeal an expulsion or suspension to Clark County Court of Common Pleas.

It is the policy of Clark-Shawnee Local School District Board of Education that students shall not be permitted to return to school pending any appeal process with the administration or the court. The School District will make every effort to promptly hear all appeals to minimize a student's absence from school. Should the Board of Education, the Superintendent, or their designees, reverse or modify a discipline decision and permit a student to return to school, such student shall be permitted ample time to make up all assignments and work missed as a result of his or her absence.

This Code of Regulations is adopted by the Board of Education of the Clark-Shawnee Local School District pursuant to Sections 3313.661 and 3313.662, Ohio Revised Code. Any student engaging in the following types of conduct either specifically or generally like the kinds of conduct listed below is subject to expulsion, suspension, emergency suspension, removal or permanent exclusion from curricular activities pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code. This code of regulations applies while a student is in the custody or control of the school, on school grounds or closely proximate thereto, while at a school-sponsored function or activity or on school-owned or provided transportation vehicles. In addition, the Student Code of Conduct governs student activities at all times, on or off school property, when such student conduct is reasonably related to the health and safety of other students and/or school employees, or such conduct would unreasonably interrupt the educational processes of the Clark-Shawnee Local Schools.

Electronic Devices

Students may use electronic devices during the school day when and where it is appropriate and with teacher or administrative permission. In general, cell phones and other electronic devices should only be used within class with specific permission from the teacher. If students use devices inappropriately, the electronic devices may be confiscated and only returned to the parent/guardian. Use and/or confiscation of a cell phone may result in progressive discipline, beginning with a detention. With regard to electronic devices, no expectation of privacy should be assumed if the student is suspected of a violation of school or classroom policy. Furthermore, it should be noted that cell phones and electronic devices are an educational distraction when not utilized properly. It is the administration's recommendation that cell phones be turned off and left in a locked locker during school hours to avoid those distractions. Teachers or other school authorities reserve the right to ask students to remove smart watches at any time.

Falsified Notes and Phone Calls

Any student found falsifying notes or phone calls from the parent/guardian will be subject to disciplinary procedures.

Reward Activities

A middle school reward activity may be offered each quarter based on attendance, behavior, and grades. In order for students to qualify for the reward activity, students will need to meet the following guidelines:

- 5 or less minor referrals/ Less than 2 Major Referrals
- No unexcused absences
- No out of school suspensions
- No F marks on their report card

Student Conduct Code of Behavior

This code of conduct is adopted by the Clark-Shawnee Local Board of Education pursuant to Section 3313.661, Ohio Revised Code.

The code meets the intent of the Ohio Revised Code which requires each board of education to adopt a set of rules and regulations designed to maintain order and discipline necessary for effective learning. The board of education's primary concern is that students who wish to learn can do so in an environment conducive to learning and that every disciplinary and prescriptive means be employed on behalf of those who would destroy or deny such an environment.

This code and its provisions shall be applicable during regularly scheduled school hours and at any school related activity, including distance learning/online instruction. Any pupil engaging in the types of conduct listed below is subject to suspension, expulsion, emergency expulsion and/or removal from curricular or

extracurricular activities pursuant to Section 3313.661 of the Ohio Revised Code. Students will be given their due process as described above.

The types of conduct prohibited by the code or regulations are as follows:

a. Damage or destruction to school property, property of school employees, or property of other students on or off school premises

b. Damage or destruction of private property on school premises or in areas controlled by the school

c. Threats, intimidation, assault of a school employee, student or other person on school premises, while in the custody or control of the school, or in the course of a school related activity

d. Engaging in any activity such as running, tripping, shoving, throwing of objects, or other "horseplay" that may endanger themselves or others.

e. Fighting, Assault, Unauthorized Physical Contact and/or endangering a student

f. Chronic misbehavior which interrupts or interferes with any school activity

g. Any disruption or interference with school activities on or off school premises.

h. Disregard of reasonable directions or commands by school authorities including school administrators, teachers or other school employees; including but not limited to general misconduct or disrespect

i. Presence in areas during school hours or outside school hours where a student has no legitimate business without permission of the proper school authority

j. Leaving school during school hours without permission of the proper school authority

k. Distribution of pamphlets, leaflets, buttons, insignias, etc., without permission of proper school authority

I. Demonstrations by individuals or groups causing disruption to the school system

m. Disrespect to a teacher or school authority on or off school premises

n. Skipping detention and/or refusing to take detention or other properly administered school discipline

p. Falsifying of information given to school authorities in the legitimate pursuit of their jobs

q. Possession and/or use of any tobacco products, lighters, matches or other nicotine-related products including, but not limited to, juuls, vapes, e-cigarettes, e-liquid, and accessories of the same. A detection device may be used to aid in the discovery of these products.

r. Buying, possession, use or being under the influence of illegal drugs, counterfeit drugs, alcoholic beverages or intoxicants of any kind; possession of any drug/alcohol related items or paraphernalia and/or any public display that advocates or encourages the use of the same on school premises or at any school related activity.

s. Selling, transferring or using any non-prescribed drug, medication, inhalant or other substance which can be taken internally on school premises or school related activities that is not prescribed by medical authority

t. Turning on false fire, tornado, bomb or disaster alarms

u. Placing of signs and/or slogans on school property without permission of the proper school authority

v. Extortion of a pupil or school personnel

w. Forgery of school related documents

x. Cursing

y. Truancy and/or habitual absence, skipping class

z. Cheating and/or plagiarizing

aa. Hazing/Bullying/Harassment

bb. Gambling

cc. Tardiness

dd. Excessive display of affection

ee. Engaging in sexual acts on school premises

ff. Indecent exposure

gg. Possession or publication of obscene, pornographic or libelous materials and/or the distribution of the same

hh. Use of indecent or obscene language in oral, written or sign form

ii. Arson and/or setting of any fire and/or possession of lighters, matches, or any other similar devices

jj. Failure to abide by reasonable dress and grooming guidelines set forth in student handbooks or established by administration or the board of education

kk. Failure to abide by rules and regulations set forth by the administration in regard to student parking and/or disobedience of driving regulations while on school premises

II. Willfully aiding another person to violate school regulations

mm. Possession and/or use of fireworks, smoke bombs, explosives or any other similar device on school premises.

nn. Inciting others to violence or disruption

oo. Insubordination

pp. Commission of any crime on school premises or at any school activity in violation of the Ohio Criminal Code, the Ohio Traffic Code or the Ohio Juvenile Code

qq. Theft, attempted theft, or unauthorized possession of any school property or the personal property of another.

rr. Any type of activity prohibited herein taking place on a school bus shall be reason for removal, suspension, or expulsion.

ss. Possession or use of dangerous weapons or ordnance or objects which look like weapons or ordnance, including, but not limited to guns, firearms, ammunition, knives, grenades, sling shots, bows, arrows, machetes, brass knuckles, chains studs, etc.; or possession or use of objects which may render physical harm to another if improperly used, including any classroom item.

tt. Violation of the bus transportation rules.

uu. Any other actions which a pupil knows or should know that will disrupt the academic process or a curricular or extracurricular activity, either on school premises or on premises where a school related activity is taking place.

vv. Sexual harassment.

ww. Use and/or possession of cell phones, music players, video games and other electronic devices during school hours and/or in prohibited areas. Students are prohibited from using electronic devices to capture, record or transmit the words (i.e. audio) and/or images (i.e., pictures/video) of any student, staff member or other person in the school or while attending a school-related activity, without express prior notice and explicit consent for the capture, recording or transmission of such words or images.

xx. Violation of Clark-Shawnee's Technology Acceptable Use Policy for Students.

yy. Violation of Clark-Shawnee's Chemical Use and Dependency Policy

Chemical Use and Dependency Policy

The Clark - Shawnee Board of Education recognizes Chemical Dependency as a medical problem that is treatable, yet progressive and potentially destructive both to the individual who has the illness and to the persons who are part of that individual's life.

The Board of Education also recognizes that Chemical Dependency will often be preceded by abuse of mood altering chemicals; such abuse will generally have serious negative consequences for individuals and their surroundings. Within the school setting these negative consequences will include but not be limited to the following: poor attendance, working below ability, repeated violation of school rules, disrespect toward other students and toward staff, inability to structure time and maintain concentration, use of mood-altering chemicals at school or at school activities or an any way directly interferes with school functioning, etc. While health problems are primarily the responsibility of the home and community, the school shares in that responsibility when chemical dependency interferes with a student's performance. The responsibility for dealing with student use and abuse of chemicals is a shared one. It is the responsibility of the teaching staff, administration, board of education, counselors, students and parents. Consequently, Clark-Shawnee School District mandates the following concerning student possession, use, and/or abuse of chemicals:

 A student shall not possess, use, transfer, handle, deliver, store, transmit, sell, offer to sell, conceal, consume, share, acquire, buy, represent, make, apply, or be under the influence of illegal drugs, mind altering chemicals, look alike drugs, alcohol, narcotic, marijuana, isobutyl nitrate, stimulants, vape, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, tranquilizer, intoxicant, solvent, gas, inhalants, amyl nitrate, or any mood altering chemical, drug or abuse of prescription drug and counterfeit substance, or any objects designed to inject, conceal, smoke, or enhance the effects of any items previously listed or any object deemed drug related. This applies to all students while on school property, attending any school-related function, and while on school transportation whether private or school owned.
 Procedures for the possession and proper use of prescription drugs has been established by Board Policy. Prescription drugs are defined as drugs authorized by a medical prescription from a licensed physician and shall not be considered in violation of this policy as long as a parent's statement, signed physician's statement, and/or prescription label is presented to the school nurse or principal's office. Such medication shall be kept in the security of school personnel.

3. Counterfeit Controlled Substances or "Look-alikes" [as defined in the Ohio Revised Code 2925.0]

A. Any drug that bears, or whose container or label bears, a trademark, trade name, or identifying mark,

B. Any unmarked or unlabeled substance that is represented to be controlled substance manufactured, processed, packed, or distributed by a person other than the person that manufactured, processed, packed or distributed it,

C. Any substance that is represented to be a controlled substance, but is not a controlled substance or is a different controlled substance,

D. Any substance other than a controlled substance that a reasonable person would believe to be a controlled substance because of its similarity in shape, size, and color, or its marking, labeling, packaging, distribution, or the price for which it is sold or offered for sale.

(1) No person shall possess any counterfeit controlled substance.

(2) No person shall make, offer to sell, sell, possess, offer to sell, or deliver any punch, die, plate, or stone, or any other device knowingly or having reason to know that it will be used to print or reproduce a trade name, or other identifying mark upon a counterfeit controlled substance.

(3) No person shall make, offer to sell, sell, give, or deliver any counterfeit controlled substance,

(4) No person shall directly or indirectly represent a counterfeit controlled substance as a controlled substance by describing its effects as the physical effects associated with the use of a controlled substance,

(5) No person shall directly or indirectly falsely represent or advertise a counterfeit controlled substance,

(6) Whoever violates any one, part, or all of this section (Ohio Revised Code 2925.37] is guilty of a felony and will be reported to the appropriate police department and juvenile authorities.

CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATION OF THE CHEMICAL USE AND DEPENDENCY POLICY:

FIRST OFFENSE:

1.Parents and/or guardians will be notified and the student shall be removed from school for the remainder of the day. A conference will be arranged with parents/guardians,

2.At the discretion of the administration, the Clark County Sheriffs' Department may be notified of the incident and at their discretion may conduct an investigation, 3.The student will be suspended for ten (10) days in compliance with Student Due Process procedures,

4. The student is required to receive a professional evaluation by a trained Chemical Dependency Counselor or a licensed physician trained in chemical dependency that is mutually agreed by both parties. The Clark - Shawnee Schools believe that early intervention in the disease process means less destruction for the student who may be harmfully involved and a greater likelihood of recovery. If the student and/or family agrees to the evaluation and/or counseling, the suspension may be reduced pending proof of evaluation and their willingness to comply with the appropriate treatment procedures. The contacted agency or office will notify the principal or his/her designee that the client has made contact and is complying with the appropriate treatment process. Based on the data that the student is being evaluated and appropriate procedures agreed upon are being followed, the student's suspension may be reduced to five (5) days. If the agency notifies the school that the student is not participating in the treatment program (such as missed appointments, chemical use during treatment, not complying with program rules, etc.), the ten (10) days suspension will be reinstated with a possible recommendation for expulsion.

SECOND OFFENSE DURING SCHOOL LIFETIME:

1. Parents shall be notified and the student shall be removed from school for the remainder of the day,

2. At the discretion of the administration, the Clark County Sheriffs' Office shall be notified of the incident and at their discretion may conduct an investigation,

3. The student shall be suspended for a period of ten (10) days in compliance with the Student Due Process procedures,

4. The principal will recommend to the superintendent of schools that the student be expelled unless the following procedure is followed.

A. The student must agree to be evaluated by a trained Chemical Dependency Counselor or a licensed physician trained in chemical dependency for a professional opinion concerning use, misuse, abuse, or addiction.

B. The contacted agency or office will notify the school administration that the client has made contact and is complying with the appropriate treatment process. Based on the data that the student is being evaluated and appropriate procedures agreed upon are being followed, the student will be suspended for ten (10) days, but may not be recommended for expulsion. If the agency notifies the school that the student is not participating in the treatment program (such as missed appointments, chemical use during treatment, not complying with program rules, etc.) the student will be recommended for expulsion.

THIRD OFFENSE:

1. The principal will suspend the student for ten (10) days and will recommend to the superintendent of schools that the student be expelled in compliance with Student Due Process procedures.

2. The principal shall notify the parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing.

3. The principal/assistant principal will notify the appropriate law enforcement agency.

SELLING, SUPPLYING, SHARING, OFFERING TO SELL OR DEALING OF CHEMICALS (DRUGS, ALCOHOL) PROCEDURES:

1. Supplying, sharing, packaging to distribute, offering to sell, dealing, or selling of chemicals will result in a ten (10) day suspension. A recommendation by the principal will be sent to the superintendent of schools for an expulsion of the student in compliance with Student Due Process Procedures.

2. The principal shall notify the parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing,

3. The principal/assistant principal will notify the appropriate law enforcement agency.

PARAPHERNALIA PROCEDURES:

A student shall not possess, use, sell, handle, give, store, acquire, conceal, offer to sell, deliver, transmit, buy, or make any instrument used for drug/alcohol abuse. Paraphernalia includes, but is not limited to: hypodermic needles, syringes, pipes, roach clips, rolling papers, e-cigarette devices, etc. Students will be suspended for this offense, with the same procedures to be followed as outlined in the preceding sections.

Technology Acceptable Use Policy

Clark-Shawnee Local School District provides students with a variety of technology (computer, camera, TV, VCR, scanner, laser disc player, calculator, different formats of software, etc.) to use for educational purposes. Computers and use of the District network or on-line services network are to support learning and to enhance instruction, as well as assist in the administration of the District. Computer networks allow people to interact with hundreds of thousands of networks. Use of the computing facilities and the Internet is a privilege, not a right. This privilege can and will be revoked for misuse as stated in the penalties section.

Goals of the electronic network are:

- To support the Clark-Shawnee Local School District Curriculum
- To enhance learning opportunities by focusing on information retrieval, searching strategies, research skills, and critical thinking
- To promote life-long learning

Through the internet, students, teachers and staff will be able to access:

- Current information on topics such as countries of the world, elections, and the weather
- News sources such as CBS, ABC, CNN, and the New York Times
- Resources from businesses such as Dow Jones, Nations and First Union banks, and Microsoft
- Government agencies including the Smithsonian, the Center for Disease Control, and NASA
- Research institutions and associations such as the World Health Organization National council of Teachers of mathematics, and National Council of Teachers of English
- A variety of other sources such as the Louvre, the Discovery Channel, Stanford University's Test Preparation site, and the White House
- Telecommunications with individuals and groups around the world by having electronic pen-pals, participating in project with other schools

Rules and Regulations

Users and parents of users must understand that the Clark-Shawnee Local School District cannot control the content of the information available on the Internet. An extremely small amount of information may be controversial and/or offensive. The District does not condone the use of such materials by using software programs which may block the materials, by providing adult supervision, and by training students K-12 to reasonably use the service. Within reason, freedom of speech and access to information will be honored. School employees, students, and parents must be aware that access to the Internet will be withdrawn from users who do not respect the rights of others or who do not follow the rules and regulations established by the Clark-Shawnee Local School District.

I. Acceptable Use

Clark-Shawnee Local School District's networks are to be used in a responsible, efficient, ethical, and legal manner and must be in support of the educational objectives and student behavior guidelines of the Clark-Shawnee Local School District. General school rules for behavior and communications apply. Transmission of any material in violation of any federal or state regulation is prohibited.

Unacceptable uses include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Violating copyright laws
- Reposing (forwarding) personal communications without the author's prior consent
- Using threatening of obscene material
- Distributing material protected by trade secret
- Utilizing the network for commercial purposes
- Providing political or campaign information

II. Network Etiquette

Users must follow network etiquette. Network etiquette includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- Be polite rudeness is never acceptable
- Use appropriate language do not swear or use vulgarities or any other abusive or inappropriate language
- Do not reveal your personal address or telephone number or those of anyone else
- Never reveal credit or checking information or social security number across the Internet
- Do not disturb the use of the network
- Do not attempt to gain unauthorized access to system programs of computer equipment
- Assume that all communications and information accessible via the network are private property

III. Security

Security on any computer system is a high priority, especially when the system involves many users. Attempts to login to the system as any other user or to share a password will result in cancellation of user privileges. If a security problem is identified, notify the system administrator at the school. Do not demonstrate the problem to other users. Note that electronic mail is not guaranteed to be private; system operators have access to all mail. Messages relating to or in support of illegal activities may be reported to the authorities.

IV. Vandalism

Vandalism will result in cancellation of user privileges and school disciplinary action. Vandalism is defined as any malicious attempt to harm or destroy equipment, programs, and/or data of anyone connected to the server and/or the Internet. This includes, but is not limited to, uploading, creating, or transmitting computer viruses.

V. Privacy

Network administrators may review files and communications to maintain system integrity and ensure that users are using the system responsibly. Users should not assume that files stored on district servers and hard drives of individual computers will always be private.

VI. Penalties

Violations of any other above guidelines and procedures may result in any or all of the following sanctions:

- Notification of parents or guardians
- Loss of access
- Additional disciplinary action may be determined at the building level in line the student code of conduct
- When applicable, law enforcement agencies will be involved

VII. Disclaimer

Clark-Shawnee Local School District will not be responsible for any damages suffered, including loss of data resulting from delays, non-deliveries, service interruptions, or inaccurate information. The user accepts personal responsibility for any information obtained or delivered via the network, including the sharing of personal information such as home address, checking account and credit card information.

Weapons

A weapon is defined as "any instrument capable or appearing to be capable of causing serious bodily injury to a person" including, but not limited to loaded or unloaded firearms, pellet guns, b-b guns, inoperable replica firearms, knives, stun guns, other "look-alike" weapons, and chemical agents such as tear gas or pepper gas.

For purposes of Ohio Revised Code 3313.66, a firearm is defined as:

- 1. Any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive.
- 2. The frame or receiver of any such weapon and firearm muffler or silencer or any destructive device.
- 3. A destructive device includes but is not limited to
 - a. Any explosive incendiary or poison gas
 - b. Bomb
 - c. Grenade
 - d. Rocket having a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces.
 - e. Missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce.
 - f. Mine or other similar device.

A "knife" means any instrument that possesses a pointed or sharp-edged blade of metal or other rigid material and that is designed for or can be used for cutting, slicing, piercing, or stabbing. This definition shall include, but is not limited to , straight razors, utility knives, box-cutter, ice picks, pocket knives, switchblades and buck knives.

Weapons/Expulsion: "Expulsion" shall be the exclusion of a student from the schools of the district for a period not to exceed the greater of eighty (80) school days or the number of school days remaining in a semester or term in which the incident that gives rise to the expulsion takes place, unless the incident involves a firearm. If a student brings a firearm on school property, in a school vehicle, or to any school sponsored activity, s/he shall be expelled for one (1) year unless the Superintendent reduces the punishment for reasons related to the specific circumstances. The Superintendent may expel a student for up to one (1) year if the student brings a knife onto school property, in a school vehicle, or to any school-sponsored activity. In compliance with Federal law, the Superintendent shall also refer any student for possession of a firearm to the criminal justice or juvenile delinquency system serving the District.

Zero Tolerance Policy

The Clark-Shawnee Local School Board of Education will not tolerate any form of violence, disruptive or inappropriate behavior or excessive truancy. All students have the responsibility to pursue their education at SMS in a manner that shows respect for other students, staff, parents, and citizens through abiding by the Student Conduct Code. Students have a responsibility to cooperate with and to assist the staff in the orderly and efficient operation of the school. We recognize that students may, from time to time, display conduct that is unacceptable in a school setting. Students with initial and/or minor violations of school rules may be disciplined using a variety of appropriate penalties. This may include parent conferences, detentions, work details, Friday after school detention, and isolated learning placements. In addition, the principal may formulate other consequences to deal with inappropriate behavior. Violations of a serious nature will result in penalties such as emergency removal, suspension, expulsion, notification of police, and/or court referral. Applications of the conduct provisions may be exercised against any student enrolled in the school system who violates these rules at school, at school-related functions, or under any circumstances related to the student's relationship to the school district, its teachers and administrators, and/or its students.

Directory Information

I authorize the Board of Education, its officials, employees, agents, etc., to consider my child's photograph/image as "directory information" and to utilize, release, and/or publish my child's photograph/image in all school publications.

If this is not agreeable, please notify the building principal in writing by September 30th.